
 

CAMBRIDGE 
REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

 

MEMO 

7/13/2022 

To:  CRA Board 
From:  Cecelia Cobb – Project Planner 
RE:  Galaxy Park Streetscape Redesign 
 

BACKGROUND 
	

Three years ago the CRA launched an effort to develop 10% concept design options for the 
streetscapes of Broadway, Main Street, and Third Street within the KSURP area, building off the Alta 
designs completed earlier (BMT Streetscape Plan). Most sections of the BMT Streetscape Plan will be 
reconstructed by developers such as Boston Properties, MITIMCo and BioMed Realty, as these 
improvements are included as mitigations for large-scale development projects.  

The CRA staff are interested in progressing a portion of the proposed concept design from the BMT 
Streetscape Plan. This includes a section of land along the southern edge of Broadway north of Galaxy 
Park, the point of Galaxy Park, and the intersection of Main Street and Broadway heading eastbound 
towards Longfellow Bridge (see Exhibit A).  

We are poised to lead the implementation of this work as the CRA is the land owner of the Broadway 
frontage, the neighboring open space will not be part of a larger development project, and its renovation 
will link bicycle facilities planned for completion in the future. 

 

SCOPE OF WORK / BUDGET 

 

Sasaki will provide landscape architecture and civil engineering services for the design of roadway 
improvements and traffic control for the project, and McMahon will provide transportation engineering 
services.  Final design will consist of development of 25%, 75%, and 100% design documents followed 
by a final PS&E (Plans, Special Provisions and Estimate) submission, and will be established in 
collaboration with City of Cambridge staff.  

The scope includes design progression through construction design for a protected bicycle lane 
heading eastbound on Broadway from Third Street to Main Street, as well as activation of the eastern 
corner of Galaxy Park. The project may include the construction of a raised crosswalk where Main 
Street eastbound meets Broadway to improve visibility for pedestrians and bikes crossing this 
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intersection. The designs will be advanced based off the 10% concept plans developed by the CRA and 
Sasaki in the report on Broadway, Main Street, and Third Street. 

As the creation of the BMT Streetscape Plans and Report is considered phases 1-3, this amendment 
scope begins at Phase 4. This phase of design will include the development of two alternatives and will 
allow comparison of the geometry, function, and cost of each. These will be based on the quantities 
shown in the alternative plans and the anticipated construction costs based on recent projects of similar 
scope. Phase 5 will include selecting one plan to develop to 25% design and will include two (2) 
perspective renderings for use in public presentations. Phases 6 and 7 will advance plans to 75% and 
100%, respectively, and Phase 8 will consist of preparing final PS&E documents. 

Given the uncertainty of increased bus routes in this area as part of the MBTA Bus Network Redesign 
and the various design options currently proposed for the intersection of Broadway, Third Street, and 
Main Street westbound, more detailed analysis may be required by the City to assess the operations of 
the intersection’s selected alternative. In this case, the consultant would utilize VISSIM microsimulation 
software to model the intersection to provide more refined analytical results that account for the high 
volume and complexity of the pedestrian, bicycle and transit movements. This would be included as an 
optional additional service. Other optional additional services include further topographic survey, 
subsurface utility engineering, and soils investigation as needed, as well as assistance with procuring 
an MBTA license and reviewing bids for construction if deemed appropriate. 

This project will be implemented in coordination with the redevelopment of SoMa Parcel 2 (Eastgate) by 
MITIMCo. The Eastgate project will also include the construction of a protected eastbound bike lane on 
the south side of Broadway to the east of Main Street.  

Assuming a review duration of 1 month each for the design alternatives, 25%, 75%, and 100% 
submissions and that the subsurface soils investigation and supplemental field survey work can be 
done during the design alternative phase, Sasaki estimates a total project design of about 12 months. 

	

RECOMMENDATION 
 
CRA staff recommend authorizing the Chair and Executive Director to amend the contract scope with 
Sasaki to complete the streetscape design surrounding Galaxy Park of an amount not to exceed three-
hundred sixty-nine thousand eight hundred dollars ($369,800). 

	

	

 

Attachments: 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work  

Exhibit B – Most recent draft of Galaxy Park Streetscape Redesign Scope 
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